
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, MARCH 9, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. Month of the Young Child and Week of the Young Child.

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

1. Angela Harne – Newspaper Information.

2. Heather Day Jackson – Watermelon Festival T-shirt design.

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
 February 6, 2020 Joint Comprehensive Plan Training Session Meeting Minutes; and
 February 10, 2020 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.

2. Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request (Conditional Zoning District):
Schedule Public Hearing for the Rezoning on Monday, April 13, 2020.

3. Ange Plaza, Lot 21 – Annexation: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of
Annexation.

4. Budget Amendment 2019-2020-5.



IX. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Buffalo Soldier Monthly Meeting location.

X. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Update current Animal Control Ordinance.

2. Mid-East Commission Appointment.

3. 2020 NCLM CityVision Conference – Attendance and Election of Voting Delegates.

4. Audit Contract for Fiscal Year 2019 – 2020.

5. New Electric Territory – Easement Acquisition and Condemnation.

XI. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

XII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XIII. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP)
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS)
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS)
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ)
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ)
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW)
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW)
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW)
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW)
 Cemetery (BW)

XIV. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. The Security Forum, Tuesday, March 10, 2020 at 7:00 pm at St. Timothy's Episcopal Church,
107 Louis Street, Greenville, NC.

2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, March 16, 2020 @ 7:00 pm in the THAR.

3. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, March 17, 2020 @ 7:00 pm in the THAR.

4. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, March 24, 2020 @ 6:30 pm in the Operations Center.

5. 2020 Community Day and Easter Egg Hunt: Saturday, March 28, 2020 from 11:00 am to 4:00
pm at the Winterville Recreation Park, 332 Sylvania Street.

6. Good Friday Holiday: Friday, April 10, 2020, Town Offices Closed.

7. Volunteer Appreciation Dinner: Thursday, April 23, 2020 at 6:30 pm in the Community Room.

XV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVI. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Proclamations 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Month of the Young Child and Week of the Young Child. 

Action Requested: Approval of Proclamation. 

Attachment: Proclamation of Month of the Young Child and the Week of the Young Child 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the attached Proclamation of Month of the Young Child and Week of the Young Child. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Proclamation. 

3



 

PROCLAMATION 
Month of the Young Child and the Week of the Young Child 

 

WHEREAS, the Martin-Pitt Partnership for Children, in conjunction with the North 
Carolina Association for the Education of Young Children (NCAEYC) and National 
Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC), are celebrating the Month of the 
Young Child in April 2020, and the Week of the Young Child, April 13-17, 2020; and  

WHEREAS, these organizations are working to promote and inspire high quality early 
childhood experiences for our city’s youngest citizens, that can provide a foundation of 
learning and success for children in Winterville, North Carolina; and  

WHEREAS, teachers and others who work with or on behalf of young children birth 
through age five, who make a difference in the lives of young children in Winterville, North 
Carolina deserve thanks and recognition; and  

WHEREAS, public policies that support early learning for all young children are crucial 
to young children’s futures and to the prosperity of our society;  

WHEREAS, all young children and their families across the country and in Winterville, 
North Carolina deserve access to high-quality early education and care; and 

WHEREAS, in recognizing and supporting the people, programs, and policies that are 
committed to high-quality early childhood education as the right choice for kids; 

NOW, THEREFORE, l, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville, do 
hereby proclaim April 2020 as "Month of the Young Child" and April 13-17, 2020 as "Week of 
the Young Child" in Winterville, North Carolina and commend observance to all citizens. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 
affixed this 9th day of March, 2020. 

 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
PUBLIC COMMENT APPLICATION 

 

 

 

 

Description of the item(s) to be presented to the Town Council Members. Please be specific. 

 

Name(s) of Speaker(s): 

(1) ____Angela Harne______________________________________________________________________ 

(2) _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

(3) _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

My signature below acknowledges that I have read the Town of Winterville Public Comment Policy.  
I agree that as applicant, the speaker(s) named above shall adhere to the Public Comment Policy of the 
Town of Winterville. 
 

 AMH  
Signature 

Name of Applicant: __Angela Harne________________________  Date: __2-26-2020_____ 

Address: __225 N. Greene St., Snow Hill____________________  Phone: __252-747-3883 

Town Council Meeting Date Requesting to Provide Comment: __3-9-2020__________________________ 

Newspaper info 

5



6



7



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council Meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 February 6, 2020 Joint Town Council and Planning & Zoning Board Comprehensive Plan Training
Session; and

 February 10, 2020 Regular Council Meeting.

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

8



 

Page 1 of 15 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AND PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 6, 2020 – 9:00 AM 

JOINT MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Joint Meeting with the Planning and Zoning Board on the above 
date at 9:00 AM in the Town Hall Assembly Room, with Mayor Pro Tem Veronica W. Roberson presiding. 
The following were present: 

 
Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 

Gregory Monroe, Chairman 
Douglas Kilian, Vice Chairman 

Robert Briley, Member 
Peggy Cliborne, Member 

Margie Crawford, Member 
Rondy Fleming, Member 

Darlene Gardner, Member 
Willie Lee Hines, Member 
Michael Weldin, Member 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Stephen Penn, Economic Development Planner 
Mike Brown, Building Inspector 

Willie Gay, Code Enforcement Officer/GIS Technician 
Tony, Klontz, Fire Recruitment, Retention and Member Development Officer 

Amy Barrow, Executive Staff Assistant/Human Resource Assistant 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Planning and Zoning Board Chairman Monroe gave the Invocation and Blessing. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson welcomed everyone and the group took a break for breakfast. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson called the meeting back to order and proceeded 
with the agenda. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: Planning Director Jones introduced Jake Petrosky, Project Manager and Jay 
McLeod, Senior Planner with Stewart who gave the following presentation. 
 

9



 

Page 2 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

10



 

Page 3 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

11



 

Page 4 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

12



Page 5 of 15 
13



 

Page 6 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

14



 

Page 7 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

15



 

Page 8 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

16



Page 9 of 15 
17



Page 10 of 15 
18



 

Page 11 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

19



 

Page 12 of 15 

 
 

 
 

 

20



 

Page 13 of 15 

The group took a short break. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson called the meeting back to order. She asked 
everyone to remember Mayor Jackson that is in the hospital. Jay McLeod, Senior Planner continued 
with the roundtable portion of the training. 
 

 

 

21



Page 14 of 15 
22



Page 15 of 15 

ADJOURN: Meeting adjourned at 11:15 am. 

Adopted this the 9th day of March, 2020. 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

23



 

Page 1 of 9 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Pro Tem Veronica W. Roberson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor (absent due to illness) 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moore gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve the agenda. 
The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
Black History Month – Mayor Pro Tem Roberson read the proclamation. 
 

24



 

Page 2 of 9 

 
 
Councilman Moore noted the retirement of Bronswell Patrick’s jersey at D.H. Conley. 

25



 

Page 3 of 9 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson read the Public Comment Policy. 
1. Alton Wadford – 35th Annual Watermelon Festival will be Thursday August 27, 2020 – Sunday, 

August 30, 2020. The Committee is requesting $50,000 in March. 
2. Dr. Glenn Johnson – Discussed a safety issue at the crossing of Main and Railroad Streets. 
 
Councilman Moore introduced County Commissioner Lauren White. She said she was happy to be at the 
meeting and commented on the upcoming Census and the economic update in the County. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 January 13, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes; and 
 January 27, 2020 Vision Setting Meeting Minutes. 

 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the consent 
agenda as presented. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Cost Participation Agreement for Betterment of Eli’s Ridge Subdivision Lift Station & Force Main: Public 
Works Director Welborn gave the following presentation. 
 
The Eli’s Ridge Subdivision development will require the construction of a new lift station within the 
subdivision to provide gravity sewer service to the subdivision. The Eli’s Ridge lift station will pump to the 
Towns new regional lift station off Old Tar Rd. Staff has coordinated with the Engineer for the Eli’s Ridge 
development and learned that the station could be upgraded to accommodate future growth east of Fork 
Swamp Canal to County Home Rd. By investing in this lift station now, the Town could avoid the need 
for additional lift stations in the future east of the canal. Lift stations are a burden on the Town and its 
staff, both financially and time wise. This investment would also provide access to sewer for all of the 
properties east of the canal, which could spur further development in the Worthington Rd. corridor. Based 
on the Engineers calculations, the Eli’ Ridge development would necessitate a 6’ diameter wet well and 
a 6” diameter force main. The Engineer has recommended to upgrade the wet well to a 10’ diameter wet 
well and the force main be upgraded to an 8” diameter main to accommodate this future growth. The 
Engineer has estimated the cost difference between what is necessary for the subdivision only and what 
would be necessary to accommodate future growth at approximately $185,000. This number is based off 
an estimate only, and the actual cost share would be based upon actual bids received. If approved, staff 
recommends that the Town borrow the funds necessary for this cost share from itself and pay the money 
back over a 5-year period. In doing so, staff believes that in can absorb this annual estimated cost of 
approximately $37,000 with its current revenue stream. Upon approval of this Agreement and receipt of 
bids from the Developer, staff will subsequently return to Council for approval of a financing agreement 
between the Town and the Developer that would define total cost and payment terms. The Engineer’s 
Cost Estimate (below) denotes the Town’s estimated portion of project costs – highlighted in yellow. 
 

 

26



Page 4 of 9 

Mayor Pro Tem Roberson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is 
the Board’s pleasure. 

Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the Cost 
Participation Agreement for Betterment of Eli’s Ridge Subdivision Lift Station & Force Main. 
The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 - Final Plat: Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation. 

27



 

Page 5 of 9 

 
 

 
 

 

28



 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 
 

 
 

29



 

Page 7 of 9 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is 
the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the 
Brookfield, Section 4, Phase 2 - Final Plat. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Councilman Smith – Discussion of Information Concerning Previous Legal Matter: Town Attorney Lassiter 
summarized the lawsuit that terminated on November 19, 2019 with a court order of a $2,917.80 federal 
judgement. Council discussed the costs incurred and the advantages and disadvantages of filing the 
judgement in state court. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to file the judgement in 
state court. The motion failed 2-3, Councilman Smith and Councilman Moore voted in favor. Mayor 
Pro Tem Roberson, Councilman Moye, and Councilman Hines opposed. 
 
Councilman Moore – Discussion of Regulations on Parking in Front Yards: Council and staff discussed 
regulations concerning parking issues in Town. Councilman Moore asked staff to investigate parking 
controls in other Towns. Councilman Moye asked staff to look into larger vehicles parking on streets. 
Staff is or will work on these issues and bring options back to Council. 
 

30



Page 8 of 9 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 

Councilman Moore asked staff to look into the backyard drainage issue and painting parking spaces 
behind Town Hall. Staff is working on both conditions. 

REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP)
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS)
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS)
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ)
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ)
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW)
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW)
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW)
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW)
 Cemetery (BW)

Parking is becoming an issue downtown. Staff is working to delineate private and public parking in 
the downtown area. Staff will disseminate information on website and social media to the public. 

Councilman Smith asked about the Town limit sign and the Reedy Branch Road closure. Public 
Works Director Welborn will contact DOT on the status. 

Staff is working in-house to move cemetery project forward. 

Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve $50,000 
for the Watermelon Festival for payment in March. The motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements. 

1. 2020 Primary One-Stop Early Voting: Thursday, February 13, Friday, February 14, Monday
February 17, Tuesday, February 18, Wednesday, February 19, Thursday, February 20, Friday,
February 21, Saturday, February 22, Sunday, February 23, Monday, February 24, Tuesday,
February 25, Wednesday, February 26, Thursday, February 27, Friday, February 28, Saturday,
February 29, 2020.

2. Daddy-Daughter Dance: Friday, February 14, 2020, 6:30 – 9:00 pm @ The Cotton Barn.

3. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, February 17, 2020 @ 7:00 pm in the THAR.

4. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, February 18, 2020 @ 7:00 pm in the THAR.

5. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, February 25, 2020 @ 6:30 pm in the Operations Center.

6. Primary Election: Tuesday, March 3, 2020.

REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 

Attorney Lassiter: Reminded Council of the Closed Session to follow. 

Councilman Moore: Asked everyone to remember staff member on the loss of a loved one. He thanked 
everyone for thoughts during his wife’s recent surgery. 

Councilman Tem Smith: None. 

31



Page 9 of 9 

Councilman Moye: He was sorry he missed the Comprehensive Land Use Plan Training due to a family 
illness. 

Councilman Hines: Urge NCDOT to erect a sign for SCHS basketball championship. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Roberson: Ask all to remember Black History Month, Heart Month, and pray for Mayor 
Jackson as he recovers in the hospital. 

Manager Parker: Thanks to Council and Staff for efforts. Noted that the Town’s new fire truck is on the 
E-One calendar this month.

Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to adjourn into Closed 
Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:34 pm. 

CLOSED SESSION: 

Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to enter into Closed 
Session: NCGS § 143-318.11. (a) (5): To establish, or to instruct the public body's staff or negotiating 
agents concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in negotiating (i) the price 
and other material terms of a contract or proposed contract for the acquisition of real property by 
purchase, option, exchange, or lease; or (ii) the amount of compensation and other material terms of an 
employment contract or proposed employment contract. (Acquisition of Real Property.)  
Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Hines to adjourn Closed 
Session. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to return to open session. 
Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

ADJOURN: Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to adjourn 
regular meeting. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:55 pm. 

Adopted this the 9th day of March, 2020. 

Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

32



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request (Conditional Zoning District). 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for Rezoning Request for April 13, 2020. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Evergreen Construction Company. 

 

Location: Hwy 11/Chapman Street north of its intersection with Main Street. 

 

Parcel Number: 20628 / 28376. 

 

Site Data: 3.27 Acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: R-6 / GB. 

 

Proposed Zoning District: Multifamily – Residential (MR) Conditional. 

 

Conditional Zoning Request: “To allow for subject parcels to be developed as 48 unit (55+) age restricted 
senior rental housing.” 

 

 Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on February 10, 2020. 

 Notification was posted on the site on February 10, 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule the Public Hearing. 

 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



______________________________________________________________________

Town of Winterville Planning Department
Zoning Staff Report  

______________________________________________________________________ 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT 

HEARING TYPE 

REQUEST 

CONDITIONS 

LOCATION 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 

TRACT SIZE 

 TOPOGRAPHY 

  VEGETATION 

SITE DATA 

Existing Use 

Evergreen Construction Company

Rezoning Request

R-6 and General Business (GB) to Multi-Family Residential (MR)

"To allow for subject parcels to be developed as 48 unit (55+) age 
restricted senior rental housing."

2576 Chapman Street 

20628 and 28376

Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request and notification was posted on site on February 10, 2020.  
14 properties were mailed notifications.  

3.27cres

Flat 

Partially cleared / Partially wooded

Vacant 

N 

E 

W 

Adjacent Zoning 

General Business

General Business, 
Agricultural Residential

R-6, Central Business

GB, R-6

Adjacent Land Uses 

Church

Single-family residential, vacant land, 
Hwy 11 S

Single-family dwellings, vacant land, 

and commercial

Single -family dwellings, commercial S

40



Page 2 of 4

S t a f f R e p o r t

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 

District Summaries 
Zoning District 
Designation: 

Max. Density: 

Existing

R-6 and GB

N/A

R-6 meant to mainly accommodate

high-density residential.  GB
intended to accommodate business
that serve the traveling public and
require large amounts of land for
display and parking.

Requested 

Multi-Family Residential

N/A 

MR is intended to provide a quiet, 
relatively high-density 

neighborhood consisting of 
apartment complexes.

*These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations; see the Town of Winterville
Zoning Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district.

SPECIAL INFORMATION

Overlay District Ordinance

n/a

Environmental/Soils
n/a

Floodplain 

Streams 

Other: 

N/A 

N/A 

If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 SW requirements, provide 
Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit

Utilities (Availability):

Water - available TOW 
Sewer - available TOW 
Electric -   available   TOW

Typical Uses:

41



S t a f f  R e p o r t

Page 3 of 4

Landscaping & Buffer Requirements

Development must meet requirements per Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering Requirements.

Chapman St – Local Street.
HWY 11 S– NCDOT Road.

Transportation 
Street Classification: 

Site Access: 

Traffic Counts: 

Trip Generation: 

Sidewalks: 

Traffic Impact Study:

(TIS) 

Street Connectivity: 

Other: 

All access(s) must be designed and constructed to the Town 
of Winterville / NCDOT standards.

None available. 

N/A. 

Per Section 6.5 Special Requirements to the Table of Permitted Uses, 
SR 2, site plan approval must be obtained from P&Z and Council.  Site 
plan must include side walks under the same manner and criteria as 
defined in the Subdivision Ordinance.

TBD

N/A. 

N/A. 

IMPACT/POLICY ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 
The proposed Multi-Family Residential zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible 
with the general character of the area. 

Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies
The Future Land Use Map designates this location as Mixed Use Center character area. 
The requested Multi-Family Residential zoning district is generally consistent with this 
character area as defined by the future land use designation.

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation

Land Use Policy 6 - Support Higher Density Housing Options in Strategic Locations: 
Encourage housing options in locations within walking distance off commercial and mixed use 
areas. 

42



S t a f f  R e p o r t

Page 4 of 4

Economic Development Policy 5 - Promote Retirement-focused living:
• Continue participation in the N.C. Department of Commerce's Certified Retirement

program.
• Remove barriers to and consider incentives for senior-friendly housing types in downtown

and other appropriate locations
• Recruit developers for individually owned patio homes and life care facilities to boraden

market offerings to the retirement age demographic.

Downtown Policy 1 - Live/work/play downtown: Allow people to live near downtown 
Winterville, by encouraging and allowing more dense residential development within walking 
distance to downtown.

Downtown Policy 3 - Encourage Investment and Redevelopment:  Encourage and allow 
high density residential in and around downtown.

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

Community Outreach 
Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning and development with owners of
surrounding properties. 

Staff Analysis 
The 3.27 acre property is currently vacant.  North of the request is a church, zoned General 
Business (GB).  East of the request NC Hwy 11 S.  South of the request are single-family
dwellings and commercial businesses, zoned R-6 and GB.  West of the request are single-family
dwellings, vacant land, and commercial businesses, zoned Central Business, R-6, and General 
Business.   The request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan, and is generally compatible with the existing development and 
trend in the surrounding area.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of the requested Multi-Family Residential District with the 
condition of being specifically for an age restricted (55+) senior housing complex. 

43



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Ange Plaza, Lot 21 – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, and Legal Description. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner of a portion of Parcel 76141 (Ange Plaza, Lot 21) is applying for annexation into the 
Town limits. 

 

Ange Plaza, Lot 21: 

Location: Beacon Drive east of its intersection with Winterville Parkway. 

Size: 1.2397 Acres. 

Zoned: GB. 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

 1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (3/9/2020). 

 2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (4/13/2020). 

 3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (5/11/2020). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency. 

 

44



45



(60'PUBLIC R/W - 40' BC/BC)

BEACON DRIVE

BEACO
N 

DRI
VE

(6
0'
PUBLI

C 
R/

W
 - 
36
' B

C/
BC)

(R
/W
 V

A
R
IE

S
 - P

A
V
E

M
E

N
T
 V

A
R
IE

S
)

(W
IN

T
E

R
V
IL

L
E
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y
)

N
C
 H

W
Y
 1
1
 &
 9
0
3

(COMMON AREA)

ANGE PLAZA

MB 62, P 162

27

21

1.2397 ACRES
MB 84, P 110

ANGE PLAZA

22

MB 66, P 145

ANGE PLAZA

23

MB 83, P 159

ANGE PLAZA

14

TO BE RECORDED

ANGE PLAZA

20

 

1
1
4
9
-

N
O

R
T

H
 

M
I
L
L

1708-FIRETOWER

1
1
4
8
-
P
I
T
T
 
T
E

C
H

1130-VERNON WHITE

N
C
 
1
1
 
(

M
E

M
O

R
I

A
L
 

B
L

V
D
)

BEACON DRIVE

N
C
 
1
1

R
A
I
L

R
O

A
D
 
E

X
T

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

M
B
 4
6
, 
P

G
 1
5
0

O
L

D
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

N
E

W
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

N 75°45'2
0" W

OLD CITY LIMITS

OLD CITY LIMITS

WCO

NORTH CAROLINAWINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP           PITT COUNTY

LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL

SURVEYED: APPROVED:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DATE:

SCALE:

CEP

CEP

CEP

MALPASS & ASSOCIATES

MAP NO. PLATS RECORDED BOOK PAGE

PROJECT NO.             , DRAWING NO.

PHONE:

 

ADDRESS:

 

OWNER:

(252) 756-1780

GREENVILLE, N.C. 27858

1645 E. ARLINGTON BLVD.,SUITE D

 

P-567

ANNEXATION MAP FOR

EXISTING CITY LIMIT =

OLD CITY LIMIT =

NEW CITY LIMIT =

  WINTERVILLE   TOWNSHIP, PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

DATE:                    ; ORDINANCE NUMBER:                    ; AREA:                     ACRES

THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, N.C.

MAP SHOWING AREA ANNEXED BY

SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY BY ME

OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION, THAT THE RATIO

CARLTON E. PARKER               L-2980

   I, CARLTON E. PARKER, CERTIFY THAT

THIS MAP WAS DRAWN BY ME OR UNDER MY

OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED FROM

LATITUDES AND DEPARTURES 1S 1:10,000+;

THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE

SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES PLOTTED FROM

INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK      , 

PAGE      ; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS 

AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE,

VICINITY MAP
1"= 1000'

SITE

P567ANEXLOT21.DGN

02/03/20

ANGE PLAZA -   LOT 21

1664.71' (
TIE)

1"= 60'

GRAPHIC SCALE

60' 60'030' 120'

1" = 60'

(252) 714-8653

BATH, NC 27808

3 REST HAVEN ROAD EXTENSION

CEDAR LANDING PROPERTIES, LLC

1.2397
THIS      DAY OF            A.D., 2020.

 OF THE PITT COUNTY REGISTRY

A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY IN DEED BOOK 3748 PAGE 300

ANNEX LOT 21

D
R

A
W
IN

G

P
R

O
G

R
E
S
S

46



Legal Description For 

Ange Plaza Lot 21 Annexation 

Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being 

more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a point in the northern right of way of Beacon Drive said point being 

located S 75-45-20 E – 1664.71’ from the intersection of the northern right of way of 

Beacon Drive and the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11and being the southeast corner 

of Ange Plaza Lot 22 as recorded in map book 84, page 110 of the Pitt County Registry, 

thence from said point of beginning N 31-04-43 E – 300.00’, thence S 58-55-17 E – 

180.00’, thence S 31-04-43 W – 300.00’ to the northern right of way of Beacon Drive, 

thence with the northern right of way of Beacon Drive N 58-55-17 W – 180.00’ to the 

point of beginning containing 1.2397 acres. 

47



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2019-2020-5. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 19-20-5. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the fifth budget amendment for the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses three items. 

The first item address funds needed to cover the award of the NC Department of Public Safety. The town 

was awarded a grant in the amount of $21,000 for the purchase of a new electronic finger printing machine. 

The second item address the need to roll over a PO that was issued in the prior year. This is also covered by 

grants funds and the Town will be reimbursed. The amount of the equipment to be purchased is $18,000. 

This is for the SAFER Grant. 

The third item address roll over of the PO that was issued last year for the purchase of the E-One Ladder 

truck. Funds to cover this expense are from Fund Balance and $600,000 that was borrowed from Southern 

Bank for the purchase. The amount of the PO is $1,043,742. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $1,082,742. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

48



SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Fund Increase Decrease

Grant Revenue 10 3420 General Fund 21,000$            

Grant Revenue 18 3400 SAFER Grant Fund 18,000$            

Fund Balance Contribution 10 3831 General Fund 1,043,742$       

Total 1,082,742$       -$        

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

  

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Department Fund Increase Decrease

Capital Outlay 1043431000 7150 Police General 21,000$            

New Equipment 1843432001 4274 Fire SAFER Grant 18,000$            

Capital Outlay 1043432000 7150 Fire General 1,043,742$       

Total 1,082,742$       -$        

Adopted the 9th day of March 2020.

Mayor Pro Tem

Town Clerk 

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 19-20-5

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment be made to the annual 

budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020:

49



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Terri Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Buffalo Soldier Monthly Meetings. 

Action Requested: Usage of Operation Center by Buffalo Soldiers. 

Attachment: Operation Center Rental Application. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 3/3/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/3/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Buffalo Soldiers are requesting to move their monthly meeting from the Community Room to the 
Operation Center Training Center. Dr. Glenn Johnson stated that the Training Facility will better suit their 
group.  

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Consider the change of location request. 

 

50



51



52



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Revisions to the Town’s Animal Control Ordinance. 

Action Requested: Adoption of the revised Ordinance. 

Attachment: Copy of proposed Ordinance 20-O-031. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Over the past few years, the Town of Winterville has experienced a substantial increase in animal control 

calls for service. These calls for service have often included citizen complaints regarding care and abuse of 

animals. These issues involve tethering, shelter condition or lack of, animals out in inclement weather and 

access to a water source just to name a few. Our current Ordinance lacks details and behaviors considered 

unlawful in many neighboring jurisdictions. The proposed (revised) Ordinance (which is attached) gives Town 

Staff the ability to better define humane and acceptable methods for tethering, sheltering, and caring for 

dogs within the Town of Winterville. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Approval. 

 

53



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-O-031 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 91 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina that Title IX Chapter 
96 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Winterville is hereby amended as follows: 
 
CHAPTER 91: ANIMALS  
 
Section 

General Provisions 

91.01 Running-at-large 

91.02 Keeping horses, mules, sheep and the like 

91.03 Construction and maintenance of stables 

Dogs 

91.20 Running-at-large or creating a nuisance prohibited 

91.21 Tethering, Keeping and Penning 

91.22 Disposition of fierce, dangerous or vicious dogs 

91.23 Owner liable for damages caused by dog or cat 

91.24 Cruel Treatment 

91.25 Enforcement 

91.99 Penalty 

Cross-reference: 

Animal waste and dead animals, see § 95.004 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

§ 91.01 RUNNING-AT-LARGE. 

It shall be unlawful for any person to allow animals, stock or fowl to run-at-large within the town, 
except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(1992 Code, § 91.01) Penalty, see § 91.99 

§ 91.02 KEEPING HORSES, MULES, SHEEP AND THE LIKE. 

(A) It shall be unlawful for any person to maintain, keep, house or stable any horse, mule, pony, cow, 
sheep, goat or other livestock within the corporate limits of the town within 300 feet of any dwelling, 
school, church, restaurant, grocery store, drug store or other retail establishment. No more than one 
such animal or livestock shall be maintained on a lot containing less than one acre, and no more than 
two such animals or livestock shall be maintained on any additional acreage of land under any 
circumstances. 

(B) It shall be unlawful for any person to maintain, keep or house any hogs or pigs within the town. 

(C) All property determined by the County Tax Office to be a farm use and therefore receive deferred 
tax status shall be exempt from these provisions as long as the property maintains its deferred tax 
status in accordance with the rules and regulations of Pitt County, the State of North Carolina and 
United States Tax Codes. 

(1992 Code, § 91.02) (Ord. O-64-03139900, passed 3-13-2000) Penalty, see § 91.99 

54

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.02%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.02
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.03%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.03
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.20%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.20
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.21%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.21
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.22%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.22
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.23%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.23
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2795.004%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_95.004
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99


2 

§ 91.03 CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE OF STABLES. 

(A) All animals or livestock shall be kept and maintained in an enclosed area, and stables shall be 
constructed and maintained in conformity with the requirements of the County Board of Health. After 
the plans for the area and stables have been approved as to sanitation requirements by the County 
Health Department, application shall then be made to the Building Inspector of the town for a permit for 
the construction. 

(B) In all cases, the structure shall be located in the manner as to give the least possible offense to 
the occupants or residents on adjoining lots. All the stables shall be cleaned and disinfected at least 
once each day and kept free of noxious odors. 

(1992 Code, § 91.03) Penalty, see § 91.99 

DOGS 

§ 91.20 RUNNING AT LARGE OR CREATING A NUISANCE PROHIBITED. 

(A) For the purpose of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 
indicates or requires a different meaning. 

OWNER. Any person, groups of persons or any entity possessing, keeping, having charge of 
sheltering, feeding, harboring or taking care of any animal covered by this subchapter. 

RUNNING-AT-LARGE. The presence of any dog or cat on any property, public or private, not owned 
by the owner of such dog or cat, unless such dog or cat is held in control by a leash or other adequate 
means of physical control by a person sufficiently strong to hold such dog or cat in control at all times. 
The phrase RUNNING-AT-LARGE shall also refer to any dog which has not been properly vaccinated 
for rabies or does not wear a vaccination tag as required by this subchapter or other applicable law. 
The phrase RUNNING-AT-LARGE shall also refer to any cat which has not been properly vaccinated 
for rabies or where the cat owner does not possess proper documentation of vaccination as required by 
this subchapter or other applicable law. 

(B) It shall be unlawful for any dog(s) or cat(s) to be running at large within the town. 

(C) It shall be unlawful for any person to own, keep, possess, harbor or maintain an animal in such a 
manner as to annoy or disturb rights and privileges common to the public or to annoy or disturb persons 
in the enjoyment of private property. By way of example, but not of limitation, the following are hereby 
declared to be a public nuisance and are therefore unlawful within the town: 

(1) Getting into or turning over waste or garbage containers; 

(2) Walking on or sleeping on automobiles of another; 

(3) Damaging the real or personal property of anyone other than its owner; 

(4) Repeatedly being or running at large; 

(5) Being maintained in an unsanitary condition so as to be offensive to sight or smell; 

(6) Not being confined to a building or secure enclosure while in estrus; 

(7) Being vicious or chasing, snapping at, attacking, or otherwise molesting others including, 
pedestrians, bicyclists, motor vehicle passengers, or domestic animals; 

(8) Allowing or permitting an animal to bark, whine, howl or yowl in an excessive, continuous or 
untimely fashion, or to make other noise in such a manner so as to result in a serious 
annoyance or interference with the reasonable use and enjoyment of neighboring premises. 

(9) Being housed or restrained less than five feet from a public street, road or sidewalk such 
that the location of the animal poses a threat to the general safety, health and welfare of the 
general public; 

(10) Being diseased or dangerous to the health of the public; 

55

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99


3 

(11) Habitually killing other animals, attacking or attempting to attach persons; 

(12) Damaging gardens, flowers or vegetables. 

(D) It shall be unlawful for any dog owner to permit any dog four months old to appear or be on any 
street, park or public place therein, unless the dog is wearing a collar or harness to which is attached a 
current rabies vaccination tag, which has been issued for the dog. 

(E) It shall be unlawful to permit any dog to defecate or urinate on the lawn or property of any but the 
owner, or upon any public or private property without the permission of the owner of that property. 

(1992 Code, § 91.20) (Ord. O-47-12108485, passed 12-10-1984; Ord. 06-O-222, passed 5-8-2006; 
Ord. 06-O-247, passed 12-11-2006) Penalty, see § 91.99 

§ 91.21 TETHERING, KEEPING AND PENNING. 

(A) It shall be unlawful for any person to restrain a dog using a chain, wire or other type of tethering 
device on vacant or unoccupied property. 

(B) No person shall tether with a chain or wire or other device to, or cause such attachment to, a 
head harness, choke-type collar or pronged collar to a dog. 

(C) Tethered dogs shall have access to adequate food, water, and shelter. This includes shelter from 
extreme heat or near freezing temperatures, flooding, tornadoes, thunderstorms, tropical storms and 
hurricanes. 

It shall be unlawful for any person, without the consent of an animal's owner or keeper, to knowingly and 
intentionally harbor or keep in possession by confinement any animal that does not belong to him/her. 
Any person in possession of a stray animal shall contact the Town of Winterville within 24 hours to 
provide notice of the stray animal's description and location or to arrange for impoundment. It shall also 
be unlawful for any person other than the owner or keeper of an animal to remove its collar, license 
tag or rabies tag. 

No more than four dogs, over six months old, shall be kept on any residential or commercial parcel of 
land in the town. No dog pen or enclosure shall be within 30 feet of the dwelling house of any person 
other than the dog's owner, unless by permission of the neighbor in writing. No pen shall be built for the 
purpose of maintaining more than four dogs within 500 feet of the city limits. 

(1992 Code, § 91.21) (Ord. O-47-12108485, passed 12-10-1984; Ord. 02-O-111, passed 11-12-2002) 
Penalty, see § 91.99 

§ 91.22 DISPOSITION OF FIERCE, DANGEROUS OR VICIOUS DOGS. 

A dog shall be deemed fierce / vicious / dangerous under the following conditions: 

Fierce / Vicious / Dangerous dog: 

(A) A dog that without provocation has killed or inflicted severe injury on a person, 

(B) A dog that has killed or inflicted severe injury upon a domestic animal when not on the real 
property of the owner of the dog, 

(C) A dog that has approached a person when unrestrained and not on the owner's property in a 
vicious or terrorizing manner in an apparent attitude of attack, or 

(D) A dog that has been declared Dangerous or Potentially Dangerous, either under State 
law or local ordinance. 

If any dog, fierce, dangerous or vicious, or having vicious propensities, or any female dog in heat is 
found running-at-large in any public place in the town, or on any private property without the permission 
of the owner or occupant of the private property, and the dog cannot be safely taken up and 
impounded, the dog may be slain by any law enforcement official of the town, county or the state. 

(1992 Code, § 91.22) (Ord. O-47-12108485, passed 12-10-1984) Penalty, see § 91.99 

56

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99
http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99


4 

§ 91.23 OWNER LIABLE FOR DAMAGES CAUSED BY DOG OR CAT.

A dog or cat owner who allows his or her dog or cat to run at large in any public place in the town or on 
any private property without the permission of the owner or occupant of said private property shall be 
liable in damages to any person injured by such dog or cat and to any person suffering loss to his or 
her real or personal property, including animals, livestock and fowl, caused by such dog or cat. 

(1992 Code, § 91.23) (Ord. O-47-12108485, passed 12-10-1984; Ord. 06-O-247, passed 12-11-2006) 
Penalty, see § 91.99 

§ 91.24 CRUEL TREATMENT.

Mistreatment of Animals; Prohibited Acts 

All animals shall be kept and treated under sanitary and humane conditions, and it shall be unlawful 
for any person to subject, or cause to be subjected, any animal to cruel treatment. It shall likewise be 
unlawful for any person to deprive, or cause to be deprived, any animal of adequate food and water, 
necessary medical attention, proper shelter, protection from the weather or humanely clean conditions. 

(A) Food, water, and shelter shall be provided as follows:

(1) All animals shall be given at suitable intervals, not to exceed 24 hours, a quantity of whole
some foodstuff suitable for the age and species of the animal and sufficient to maintain
a reasonable level of nutrition.

(2) All Animals shall have access to a constant supply of clean, fresh water.

(3) All animals shall be provided with adequate shelter from the weather and humanely clean
conditions at all times. Examples of inadequate shelter include but are not limited to the
following:

a. Underneath outside steps, decks and stoops.

b. Underneath houses.

c. Inside or underneath motor vehicles.

d. Inside metal barrels.

e. Inside cardboard boxes.

f. Inside temporary animal carriers or crates.

g. Shelters located in flood prone areas.

h. Shelters that cannot be accessed by the animal for any reason.

The following list is a non-exhaustive illustration of situations that violate this provision: 

i. A shelter surrounded by debris, obstructions, or impediments that may
endanger an animal.

ii. A shelter that is overturned or turned on its side.

iii. A shelter that cannot be accessed because the animal's tether or chain does
not allow entry.

(B) Animal cruelty. It shall be unlawful for any person to intentionally molest, torture, torment,
deprive of necessary sustenance, cruelly beat or treat, needlessly mutilate or kill, wound, injure,
poison, abandon or subject any animal to conditions detrimental to its health or general welfare or
to procure any such actions to be inflicted upon any animal. Examples of cruel treatment include
but are not limited to the following:

(1) Allowing a collar, rope or chain to become embedded in or cause injury to an animal's
neck.

57

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99


5 

(2) Allowing a choke or pinch collar to be used as a primary collar when the animal is left 
unsupervised. 

(3) Allowing a dog, cat or other domesticated pet to be left outside in inclement weather or 
extreme temperatures without adequate shelter. 

(4) Intentionally allowing animals to engage in a fight. 

(5) Confinement in unsanitary conditions. An unsanitary confinement area is any 
confinement area that does not allow for the animal to sit down, lie down, or stand, 
without doing so in urine, feces, mud, or standing water. 

(6) Allowing animals to live in crowded conditions. Each animal must be able to sit, stand, 
lie down, and turn around without interference from other animals or objects. 

(7) Failure or refusal to obtain medical treatment for an animal when, in an Animal Services 
Officer's or Animal Cruelty Investigator's opinion, such treatment is needed. 

(8) Using lethal force against an animal, either on or off the owner's property, unless (1) the 
animal is in the act of attacking and causing severe injury to a human being or any 
other domestic animal, or unless (2) a human is reasonably afraid the animal is about to 
attack and cause injury to a himself, herself, or another, or unless (3) the animal has, or 
appears to have rabies. 

(9) Permitting any exhibit, function or activity where animals are being cruelly treated or 
animals run the risk of causing injury to the public or themselves. 

§ 91.25 ENFORCEMENT. 

It is hereby declared the duty of the Town Animal Control Officer to: 

(A) Carry out enforcement of the provisions of this chapter and notify persons in violation of this 
chapter of such violations; 

(B) Enforce the penalties for violations set out under § 91.99; 

(C) Notify the owner or keeper of any dog(s) or cat(s) who shall knowingly suffer or permit his or her 
dog(s) or cat(s) to run at large on the streets and sidewalks or create a public nuisance to place the 
same under the proper control or confinement; 

(D) Impound dog(s) or cat(s) if the owner or keeper cannot be identified, or if the owner or keeper 
fails or refuses to abate the situation of his or her dog(s) or cat(s) running at large or creating a public 
nuisance; 

(E) All dog(s) or cat(s) impounded at the County Animal Shelter shall become wards of the same, 
and thereby under the rules and regulations of the county. 

(F.) The Town of Winterville or its designated agent is authorized to place, upon request, live 
animal traps on public or private property to trap and remove stray, at large, unwanted or nuisance 
animals, including cats. It is unlawful for any person other than a town designated representative to 
remove any animal from any town trap, or to damage, destroy, move or tamper with any town trap. 

(1992 Code, § 91.24) (Ord. O-47-12108485, passed 12-10-1984; Ord. O-14-09149899, passed 9-14-
1998; Ord. 06-O-247, passed 12-11-2006) 

§ 91.99 PENALTY. 

Penalties for a violation of any of the provisions of this chapter may be expressly included with each 
provision. Otherwise, any violation of the provisions of this chapter shall be punishable as follows: 

(A) Any violation of the provisions of this chapter shall subject the offender to a civil penalty in the 
amount of $25. Each subsequent day that a violation listed in this chapter continues shall constitute a 
separate and distinct offense. Violators shall be issued a written citation, which must be paid within 72 
hours. If the person fails to pay the civil penalty within 72 hours, the town may recover the penalty 

58

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=north%20carolina(winterville_nc)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%2791.99%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_91.99


6 

including all costs and attorney’s fees by filing a civil action in the general court of justice in the nature 
of a suit to collect a debt. The town may increase any civil penalty assessed under this section by $50 
for each subsequent violation of the same provision within a two-year period. The Town may, in its 
discretion, additionally seek restitution for the actual cost of maintaining, transporting, boarding, or 
providing veterinarian services for any animal impounded under this Ordinance; or 

(B) Any violation of any provision of this chapter shall be an infraction, punishable upon conviction by 
a fine not to exceed $500; or 

(C) In addition, enforcement of this chapter may be by injunction, restraining order or abatement in a 
court of competent jurisdiction, as provided by G.S. § 160A-175(d) and (e). 

(1992 Code, § 91.99) (Ord. O-47-12108485, passed 12-10-1984; Ord. O-14-09149899, passed 9-14-
1998; Ord. 04-O-128, passed 10-11-2004; Ord. 07-O-, passed 4-9-2007) 

 
This chapter is effective upon adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 Adopted this the 9th day of March, 2020. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

59



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Mid-East Commission Appointment. 

Action Requested: Appoint Member to Mid-East Commission Board. 

Attachment: Certificate of Appointment. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Select a member of Council to serve as its representative to the Mid-East Commission Board for a term of 
two years. Mayor Pro-Tem Roberson is serving as the current representative. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Appoint member of Council. 

 

60



Town of Winterville 
Certificate of Appointment 

Membership to the Mid-East Commission 
 

 

The Town Council of the Town of Winterville, at its March 9, 2020 meeting, appointed 

                                            , to serve as its representative to the Mid-East Commission 

Board for a term of two years beginning with the January Board meeting. 

This action was taken in accordance with the Bylaws of the Mid-East Commission 

Article V, Section 3 and 4 on this 9th day of March, 2020. 

 
 
 
 
   
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

61



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2020 NCLM CityVision Conference – Attendance and Election of Voting Delegates. 

Action Requested: Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates. 

Attachment: CityVision 2020 Voting Information. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020

Supporting Documentation 

2020 NCLM CityVision Conference - Wilmington, NC 

Tuesday, May 5, 2020 – Friday, May 8, 2020 

NCLM Annual Business Meeting 

May 7, 2020 after Luncheon 

Approximately from 12:30 pm - 1:45 pm 

Election of officers and members of the NCLM Board of Directors and League Business. 

Voting Information: Each city or town that registers for CityVision 2020 will be able to attend and cast votes 
at the annual business meeting scheduled during the conference. Once a completed registration is received 
for a municipality, the manager and/or clerk will receive an electronic form requesting the name of the 
Authorized Voting Delegate who will cast votes on behalf of the municipality. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Elect Voting and Alternate Voting Delegates. 

62



CityVision 2020 Voting Information 
 
Annual Business Meeting 
May 7, 2020 after Luncheon 
Approximately from 12:30 pm - 1:45 pm 
 
Election of officers and members of the NCLM Board of Directors and League Business. 
 
Voting Information 
Each city or town that registers for CityVision 2020 will be able to attend and cast votes 
at the annual business meeting scheduled during the conference.  Once a completed 
registration is received for a municipality, the manager and/or clerk will receive an 
electronic form requesting the name of the Authorized Voting Delegate who will cast votes 
on behalf of the municipality. 
 
That named delegate will receive instructions at the conference for how to cast the 
municipality's vote. For questions, contact Karen Waddell at kwaddell@nclm.org  

63

mailto:kwaddell@nclm.org


 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Audit Contract for Fiscal Year 2019 – 2020. 

Action Requested: Approve the Audit Contract with Carr, Riggs, and Ingram, LLC. 

Attachment: Contract and Engagement Letter. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 2/26/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/2/2020 ☒ TM: 3/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Each year the Town Council must approve the contract with the audit firm that it uses for its independent 

review of the Town’s Finances. We are recommending that we use CRI out of Goldsboro. This will be the 

third full year for the Goldsboro team. Mr. Jordan and his staff are highly recognized in the State and are 

considered to be one of best. 

Budgetary Impact: This is accounted for in the operating budget for the Finance Department. The value of 
the contract is $38,600. 

Recommendation: Approve the Contract. 

 

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



Mayor Pro Tem

March 9, 2020

March 9, 2020

Finance Director

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

AUDIT FIRM 

Audit Firm* 

Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC 

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printed)* Signature* 
Michael C. Jordan 

Date* Email Address* 
mjordan@cricpa.com 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT 

Governmental Unit* 

Town of Winterville 

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board 

Approved Audit Contract* (G.S.159-34(a) or G.S.115C-447(a)) 

Signature* Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed)*

Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem

Date

March 9, 2020 
Email Address 

veronica.roberson@wintervillenc.com 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or "NA") Signature 
NIA 

Date Email Address 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT-PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1). 

Not applicable to hospital contracts. 

Rev. 9/2019 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the mannerrequired by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer* (typedorpnnted Signature* 

Anthony B. Bowers 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate* Email Address* 

anthony.bowers@wintervillenc.com 

Page 7 of 8 

81



82



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: March 9, 2020 

Presenter: Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: New Electric Territory – Easement Acquisition and Condemnation. 

Action Requested: Approval of Request. 

Attachment: List of Properties. 

Prepared By: Robert Sutton, Electric Director Date: 3/3/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 3/3/2020 ☒ TM: 3/5/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 3/4/2020

Supporting Documentation 

The 2019/2020 Electric Fund Budget allocated funding for the expansion of the Town’s electric system in 

areas between and adjacent to Worthington and Laurie Ellis Roads. Installing the required electrical 

infrastructure requires the acquisition of easements from area property owners. 

The project area currently has eight remaining parcels requiring a dedicated easement. The easement 

depths vary from fifteen to twenty-five feet. Town staff is currently negotiating with the property owners for 

the necessary easements. Due to the time sensitive nature of the project, staff is requesting Council approve 

the condemnation of the necessary easement area on each parcel should an agreement not be reached with 

property owners in a reasonable and timely manner. 

Budgetary Impact: The FYE 20 Budget allocated sufficient funding for the acquisition of needed 
easements. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends initiating condemnation process as needed. 

83



Easement Parcel Number Easement Dimension Type Physical Address Owner Name Owner Name

A 67135 (15' x 207') P 785 Worthington Rd. Worthington, Alva Wayne

B 25758 (20 'x 397') P 739 Worthington Rd Worthington, Jr. , Alva Wayne

C 25758 (15' x 170') P 739 Worthington Rd Worthington, Jr. , Alva Wayne

D 25758 (15' x 1305') P 739 Worthington Rd Worthington, Jr. , Alva Wayne

E 25758 (20' x 540') P 739 Worthington Rd Worthington, Jr. , Alva Wayne

F 25820 (15' x 102') P 820 Worthington Rd Worthington, Jr. , Alva Wayne

G 80305 (20' x 995') P 0 Laurie Ellis Rd Worthington, Jr. , Alva Wayne

H 83376 (15' x 363') P 981 Laurie Ellis Rd Brock, Sue Ellen

I 66251 (25' x 1750') P 978 Laurie Ellis Rd Brock, Sue Ellen

J 81738 (25' X 45') P 0 Laurie Ellis Rd Allen, Gregory W.

K 55092 (25' X 985') P 717 Laurie Ellis Rd F&A Construction Luis LIbrerus

84


	20200309_Agenda
	6-1a_Proclamation_Abstract_Young_Childv2
	6-1b_Winterville_Young_Child_Proclamation
	7-1a_Angela _Harne_Public_Comment_App
	7-2a_Heather_Day_Jackson_Public_Comment_App
	7-2b_Attachment
	8-1a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	8-1b_DRAFT_Comp_Plan_Training_Meeting_Minutes_20200206
	8-1c_DRAFT_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_20200210
	8-2a_Consent_Abstract_Evergreen_Rezoningv2
	8-2b_Evergreen_Rezoning_ App_Map_Legal
	8-2c-Evergreen_Staff_Report
	8-3a_Consent_Abstract_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Cert_Suffv2
	8-3b_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Petition Request_Annex
	8-3c_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Annexation_Map
	8-3d_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Annex_Legal_Description
	8-4a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amendmentv2
	8-4b_Budget_Amendment_2019-2020-5
	9-1a_Buffalo_Sodiers_OPS_Usagev2
	9-1b_Buffalo_Soldiers_Operation_Center_Rental
	10-1a_New_Abstract_Animal_Control_Ordinancev2
	10-1b_Animal_Control_Ordinance_20-O-031
	10-2a-New-Abstract-Mid-East Appointmentv2
	10-2b-Mid-East_Appointment_Certification
	10-3a-Abstract_2020_CityVisionv2
	10-3b-CityVision 2020 Voting Information
	10-4a_Consent_Abstract_CRI_Audit_2020_Contractv2
	10-4b_CRI_Audit_2020_Contract_Roberson
	10-5a_Abstract_Electric_Teritory_Easementsv2
	10-5b_Property List for Easements



